


















































The Speaker has considerable disciplinary powers. If a Member's conduct
in the House were grossly disorderly the Speaker could order him fo withdraw
from the precinets of the House for the remainder of that day’s sitting. The
Serjeant-at-Arms, who iz an officer of Parliament appointed to attend upon the
Speaker, would act on such orders as he received from the Speaker (o ensure
the Member's withdrawal, If the Speaker considered an offence commitied by a
Member in the House 0 serious that a more drastic punishment was required
he could “name” the Member, In this case the procedure 15 as follows: The
Speaker says, “Mr. X, [ have to name vou for disregarding the authority of the
Chair™, Whereupon the Leader of the House, who is a senior cabinet minister,
of in his absence any other minister, rises and moves: “That Mr. X be suspended
from the service of the House”. The Speaker forthwith puts the Question for
decision, no amendment, adjournment or debate being allowed, On the mofion
being carried the recalcitrant Member is suspended on the first occasion in any
session for four sitting days, on the second occasion For eight sitling days and
on the third or any subsequent occasion for sixteen sitting days. In the case of
great disorder arising. where a number of Members disregard the authority of
the Chair, the Speaker 15 authorized by Standing Orders of the House to
adjourn the House without putting any Question, or o suspend any sitting for a
time to be named by him.

These drastic powers are seldom wsed, For the most part the Speaker’s
call of “Order™ is quite sufficient to prevent breaches of the law and custom of
Parliame.at. A good Speaker gains from Members what has been aptly described
by Graham in “Mother of Parliaments™ as the “*willing acquiescence and not the
reluctant submission o his decisions™,

The more important rulings by the Speaker on matters of parliamentary
procedure are preserved in the records of Parliament, Ower the years they come
to form a body of “case law™ or precedents to which future Speakers would
refer in similar circumstances, A Standing Order of the House provides as
follows:

“In any matter for which these Standing Ovrders (which regulate the
procedure of Parliament) do nor provide or which are not provided for by a
Sessional or ather Order, the decision of Mr. Speaker . . . shall be final, and
i arriving at such decision he may take as his guide the relevani praciice and
such parliamentary precedents of this or another country as may be applicable
i the circumstances.”

Thus a ruling by the Speaker cannot be guestioned, and his conduct in the
House can only be debated on a substaniive mobtion moved after notice
specifically for that purpose. In terms of the present Constitution the Speaker
cannot be removed from office except by an affirmative vote of not less than
two=thirds of the total membership of the House of Assembly, Moreover hiz
salary as Speaker 5 charged upon and paid oul of the Consolidated Revenue
Fund and cannot be reduced during his continuance in office.

What has been written above about the Speaker and the procedure of the
House of Assembly applies equally, mutaris mutandis, 1o Bhodesias Senate and
its presiding officer, the President of the Senate.

Rhodesians may take great pride in the manner in which over the past half
century the customs and traditions of Parliament have been maintained. On
the other hand there has been no die-hard conservatism with regard to procedure.
Where 1t 15 thought that improvements could be made, these have been effected.
The present edition of the House of Assembly Standing Orders is the Tenth,
and at each revision attempts have been successfully made to improve and
streamling the procedure in the House and to omit material which served litile
or no useful purpose. As the leading fexi-book on Parliamentary Procedure by
Ersking May puis it: “The true standard for measuring the relative importance
of a form or rule is the extent to which it is essential or serviceable to the exercise
by each House of its parliamentary functions.™

Finally, the privileges of Parliament are essential to its proper functioning.
It is of some significance that the first bill to be introduced in the first session of
Rhodesia®s first Parllament was the Powers and Privileges of Parliament Bill,
the long title of which read as follows:

“To define and declare the powers and privileges of the Legislative
Assembly of Southern Bhodesia; to secure freedom of speech and debate
or proceedings in the Legislative Assembly: and to give summary protaction
to persons employed in the publication of parliamentary papers.”



Subsequent Parliamentary Developments

The 1923 Constitution was to serve Rhodesia for some thirty-gight years,
and under it nine Parliaments were elected. Towards the end of this period the
Federation of Southern Rhodesia, Northern Rhodesia and Nyasaland was
established in 1953, and many of the more important functions of Government
were transferred to it. The Federal Constitution provided initially for a Parlia-
ment, 10 be known as the Federal Assembly, of thirty-five Members including
gix Africans, two from each of the three territories, and three members with
special responsibilities for African affairs. In 1958 the membership of the
Federal Assembly was enlarged to fiftv-nine members and the African member-
ship was doubled.

From the outset the Federal Assembly had close ties with the Rhodesian
Parliament. Its first series of sittings in the early part of 1954 was held in the
Ehodesian Parliament and its Speaker, the late Sir Jan Wilson, had previously
been Speaker of the Rhodesian Parliament. Of the Members representing
Southern Rhodesia in the Federal Assembly many, including the first Federal
Prime Minister, had either held office or sat in the Bhodesian House, As
representative institutions were al a comparalively primitive stage in the two
northern territories af the time of the establishment of Federation, il was
inevitable that the customs and procedure of the Federal Assembly were closely
based on those of Southern Rhodesia. Moreover, for its entire life the Federal
Assembly was housed in a building adjoining the Rhodesian Parliament which
today forms the first three floors of the north wing.

The Federation did not survive, Despite the vehement opposition of the
Federal Government, the British Government agreed in December, 1962, (o
allow Nyasaland to secede from the Federation, and the death blow was
delivered on the 29th March, 1963, when the British Government announced
that any territory would have the right to secede. The Federation was finally
brought to an end by British legislation on 315t December, 1963, by which time
all its functions of government had reverted to the three territories.

In the meantime following & referendum a new Constitution had been
granted to Rhodesia by Britain in terms of the Southern Rhodesia (Constitution)
Order in Council, 1961, made on the 6th December, 1961, The major portion
of the new Constitution was to come into operation on “the appointed day™,
which, in effect, was the date of the dissolution of the Ninth Parliament,

One of the principal provisions of the 1961 Constitution increased the
membership of Parliament from thirty to sixty-five members, elected from fifty
constituencies by voters on the higher, or “A™ electoral roll and fifteen elected
from fiftesn electoral districts by voters on the lower, or “B" electoral roll,
As the lower, or “B" roll consisted predominantly of Africans, this would for
the first time in Rhodesia’s history ensure the election of Africans to Parliament.

Provision was also made for a Declaration of Bights and for a Constitutional
Council whose sole function was 1o act as the waich-dog of the people for
safeguarding their rights under the Declaration by examining any bill passed by
Parliament which was submitted to it or any subsidiary legislation enacted
after the coming into operation of the Constitution and by reporting to Parlia-
ment whether, in its opinion, any such bill or subsidiary legislation contained
any provision which was contrary to or inconsistent with any of the provisions
of the Declaration of Rights. Any such law (including any subsidiary legislation)
which was found by a court to be contrary to the Declaration of Rights could
be pronounced to be invalid.

Under the new Constitution the powers of the Governor were curtailed,
While his appointment continued to be made by the Sovereign on the advice
of the Secretary of State, the Rhodesian Government had a constitutional right
to be consulied before any name was submitted to the Cueen. The Governor
was required to act in accordance with the advice of his Ministers in all matters
except in regard to (a) the dissolution of the Legislative Assembly; (&) the
choice of the Prime Minister; and () the appointment of the Chairman of the
Constitutional Council where he was required to act on the advice of the Chief
Justice. In regard to the choice of Prime Minister and the dissolution of the
Legislative Assembly, the Governor would act in accordance with his own
discretion, but he was required to exercise that discretion in the same manner
as the Soverzign in the United Kingdom in similar circumstances.

The “reserved powers™ vested in the British Secretary of State disappeared.
In contrast to the position under the 1923 Constitution, the Legislative Assembly
had power to amend or repeal any of the provisions of the new Constitution
except those relating to the functions of the Sovereign and the functions of the
Governor as the Sovereign's representative. The power of disallowance by the
Sovereign was retained only in respect of any act which might be inconsistent









with any international obligations imposed on the Sovereign in relation to
Rhodesia or which altered to the detriment of the stockholders or departed from
the onginal contract in respect of any stock issued wnder the British Colomal
Stock Acts by the Rhodesian Government on the London market. Such laws
could be disallowed within six months of their being passed, Certain provisions
of the new Constifution were, however, specially entrenched ; that is to say they
required a special procedure for their amendment. These provisions were those
which related to the Declaration of Rights, appeals to the Privy Council, the Con-
stitutional Council, the Judiciary and the provisions for amending the Con-
stitution, securing <ivil service pensions and giving effect to the restriction on
the amendment of the franchise and also provisions in regard to land,

Omie interesting point was that whereas the 1923 Constitution made pro-
vision, as already mentioned, for the establishment of a Second Chamber, there
was no such provision in the 1961 Constitution,

A further important provision contained in the 1961 Constitution was that
the Legislative Assembly was specially empowered to make laws having extra-
territorial effect. The legislative powers confinued to be vested in the Legislative
Assembly of sixty-five Members elected in accordance with the electoral Law
for the time being in force relating to elections. Qualifications and disqualifica-
tons of voters continued to be governed by the electoral laws of the country
and the legislature had power to amend the franchise and electoral laws generally,
However, any amendment of the franchise which had the effect of rendering
ineligible for inclusion in the “A"™ Roll or the “B™ Roll, as the case may be, any
person who would have been entitled o be included in the Roll on the basis of
the new qualifications would require for its enactment the special procedure
referred to above for the entrenched clauses of the new Constitution.

Reference was made earlier to the transmission of bills passed by the
Legizlative Assembly to the Constitulional Council. Certain categories of bills,
however, were excluded from this provision in the Constitution. These were
Money Bills, Bills certified by the Prime Minmister to be of 50 urpent a nature
that it was not in the public interest to delay their enactment, and Rills which
amended, added to or repealed any specially entrenched provision of the
Constitution or which under the provisions of the Constitution were made
subject 1o the same procedure as if they were such bills.

It will be seen from the above that the 1961 Constitution was a milestone
on the path of Rhodesia’s Parliament towards full and unimpeded legislative
sovereignty. From the time of the break up of the Federation the Rhodesian
Government sought to negotiale independence with the British Government.
These attempts failed, Britain in due course conferred independence on the
two northern territories of the former Federation, which were eventually re-
named Zambia and Malawi, Rhodesia, which for forty years had enjoyed
responsible government, was denied legal soversignty.

* * *

In Movember, 1964, the Rhodesian Government, having been empowered
by an Act of Parliament, held a referendum “for the purpose of determining
whether the voters of Southern Rhodesia are in favour of or against Southern
Rhodesia obtaining independence on the basis of the Constitution of Southern
Rhodesia, 1961, The result left no room for doubt. 53 176 votes were cast in
favour and & 10] against.

* * *

Further talks on independence were held with the British Government in
October, 1965, Mo agreement was reached, and in a broadcast to the nation
od the 11th Movember, 1965, the Prime Minister declared Rhodesia’s independ-
ence and announced a new Constitution, closely based upon the 1961 Constigu-
tion but without any elements of subordination to Britain. When Parliament
miel shortly afterwards on the 25th November, 1965, the Speaker ruled that the
1965 Constitution was valid. Subsequently, by the Constitution (Ratification)
Act (Mo, 1 of 1964), the 1965 Constitution was duly ratified by a two-thirds
majority of Parliament.










The present compositic:n of Parliament

On the 20th June, 196%, the Government, having been empowered by an
Act of Parliament, held a referendum to determine the opinion of the
voters on the following questions:
{@) whether the voters were in favour of or against the adoption of a
republican form of government for Rhodesia; and
{b) whether the voters were in favour of or against the proposals for a new

Constitution for Rhodesia as set out in @ White Paper and published

in a Gazerte Extraordinary on the 21st May, 1969.

The proposal for a republican form of government was approved by
81 per cent. of the electorate, and the new Constitution by 72 per cent. There-
after, Parliament by a two-thirds majority enacted the Constitution of Rhodesia,
1969, & new Electoral Act, a Land Tenure Act and a High Court Amendment
Act to give effect to the constitutional proposals accepled at the referendum.
The 1969 Constitution came into effect on the 2nd March, 1970, which was the
date of the dissolution of the eleventh Parliament of Rhodesia.

Some of the principal provisions of the 1969 Constitution which relate to
Parliament are as follows:

The legislative power of Rhodesia is vested in the Legislature which
consists of the President of Rhodesia and the Parliament.

The Legislature is the sovereign legislative power in and over Rhodesia
and has power to make laws, to be entitled “Acts™, for the peace, order and
good government of Rhodesia, including laws having extra-territorial
operation.

The Parliament of Rhodesia consists of a Senate and a House of
Assembly.

The Senate consists of twenty-three Senators of whom ten are Euro-
peans elected by an electoral college consisting of the European Members
of the House of Assembly, ten are African Chiefs elected by the Council of
Chiefs, five of whom are from Matabeleland and five from Mashonaland
and three are persons of any race appointed by the President of Rhodesia.
The President of the Senate, who is its presiding officer, is not a Senator,
but is elected by the Senate. The Constitution also provides for a Scnate
Legal Committee which is a Committes of Senators the majority of whom
have prescribed legal qualifications. It is the function of this Committee (0
examine bills and subsidiary legislation and to report to the Senate whether

they contain any provision inconsistent with the Declaration of Rights,
which is contained in the Second Schedule of the Constitution.

The House of Assembly consists at present of sixty-six Members of
whom fifty are Europeans elected by Europeans enrolled on the rolls of Euro-
peans for fifty European Roll constituencies, eight are Africans elected
by Africans registered on the rolls of voters for four constituencies in
Matabeleland and four constituencies in Mashonaland, and eight are
Africans elected by four electoral colleges in Matabeleland and four
electoral colleges in Mashonaland comprising chiefs, headmen and elected
councillors of African councils in the Tribal Trust Land. The Speaker is
not 3 Member of the House of Assembly but is elected by the House.

It is provided in the Constitution that when the total amount of income [ax
assessed on the income of Africans exceeds sixteen sixty-sixths of the total
income tax assessed on the income of both Africans and Europeans the number
of African members of the House of Assembly shall be increased so that it bears
the same proportion to the number of members of the House of both races as
the total of the income tax assessed on the income of Africans bears to the total
amount of the income tax assessed on the income of both Africans and Euro-
peans. This provision has effect until such time as the number of African
members equals the number of European members. It should be noted in this
connection that the 1969 Constitution defines “European” as “a person who
is not an African™.

In the foregoing narrative an attempt has been made to trace the growth of
representation in Rhodesia over the years. From the four representatives of the
pioneers and early settlers in the Legislative Council of 899 there developed in
twenty-five years the thirty member Legislative Assembly of 1924. Today the
public of Rhodesia are represented in an independent bicameral Parlament
by eighty-nine Senators and Members. The responsibilities, however, have also
increased. To cite but one example, at the time of the attainment of responsible
government the total annual expenditure of the Government amounted to
£1 356 489. The current main Estimates of Expenditure provide for a total
expenditure of $287 890 300 from revenue funds and $15858 112 from loan
funds: and it is Parliament which debates and authorizes this expenditure.






A history of the
Cecil Building

he Cecil Building has been associated with the administration and govern-

ment of Rhodesia since 1899, The original building, one of the oldest in
Rhodesia, is still the core and focal point of the present structure. It was built
in its original form by two partners, Robert Graham Snodgrass and David
Miichell, who, early in 1891, had arrived in Salisbury with a wagon load of
trade goods from the railhead near Vryburg. The bulk of this consignment
congisted of cases of Scotch whisky which was in particularly short supply at
the time. Scon after their arrival in Rhodesia, the partners began to build
hotels. Snodgrass, during his travels, had acquired a knowledge of architectiure
and the building trade, and it was he who designed the structures they built.

In 1895, they undertook their most ambitious project, the construction of
the Cecil Hotel which in later years was to become the hub of Rhodesia’s House
of Assembly. On the 31st July of that year, stands 1956, 1957 and 879 (which
was later renumbered 1958) were granted to the partners. Construction must
have started fairly promptly for, in the Govermment (B.S. A, Co.) Gazeite of
12th February, 1896, appears a notice of application for a liquor licence sub-
mitted by the partners “in respect of premises situated in Cecil Square™, and the
first Handbook re Rhodesia, published at the beginning of 1897, contains an
advertisement for the Cecil Hotel, Salisbury.

In 1896, the building was fir from complete; the walls were up, part of a
temporary roof was on, and floors had been put into a few of the rooms. The
great difficulty and cost of bringing up heavy loads of building material from
the railhead (this went up to 1/~ per Ib.), the rinderpest outbreak and the
Rebellion, all combined to bring building operations almost to a standstill.
Mevertheless, certain parts of the building were habitable after a fashion. Early
in 1897, the hotel was taken over by the British South Africa Police as temporary
quarters for the men assembled in Salisbury during the Rebellion. Many
pioneers could recall sleeping in what is now the Chamber of the House of
Assembly which at the time had no floor or proper ceiling. This occupation
was not continued long, for on 24th September, 1897, a paragraph in the
personal column of the Rhodesia Times and Financial News announced that
Messrs. Snodgrass and Miitchell had let the Cecil Hotel to one “Mr. Lazarus
of Australia®, who took the opportunity to inform prospective customers that
he intended to carry out extensive improvements. The hotel was reopened on

Ist October, 1897, 1t is clear that the building at this date was an hotel in name
only as it was quite unfinished. The bar and the dining room were the only
parts of the building fit for use,

Unhappily, Mr. Lazarus found that the Cecil did not pay, and in February,
1898, the hotel reverted to the control of the owners, who placed Mr. Alfred
Smith in charge of it. But the continuing difficulties which beset attempts to
transport heavy materials to Salisbury made it impossible to run the shell of the
hotel as a paying proposition. Snodgrass and Mitchell had raised a bond of
£3 500 from Mr. Rhodes and £7 000 from the British South African Company
to enable them to erect the building and it was probably for this reason that the
Company, who were looking for suitable premises for wse as Government
Offices near their existing buildings, began to negotiate with Snodgrass and
Mitchell for the Cecil Hotel in the latter part of 18%8. In October, 1898, it was
announced that the building was to be sold, and the following description of
the property appeared in the Rhodesia Times:

“The Cecil Hotel is a double-storey building measuring 90 ft. by 75 ft.;
the ground floor contains a dining room 28 fi. by 45 ft.; a billiards room
28 ft. by 41 ft.; public and private sitting rooms; a reading room; extensive
cellarage capable of holding a large stock of wines. The first floor contains
1§ bedrooms. There is also a very extensive double-storeved stable, a
coach house and all necessary outbuildings.”

On 12th December, 1898, the Cecil Hotel was sold to the British South
Africa Company for £7 000. The Rhodesia Herald of Wednesday, 14th Decem-
ber, 1898, reported that the intention of the Company was to use the building
as a General Post Office, The files of the Public Works Department show,
however, that it was the real intention of the Company to use the building to
provide office accommodation for the Administrator, the Executive Council,
the Survey Depariment, the Postmaster-General, and above all to provide an
adequate debating chamber for the Legislative Council. The report of the
Director of Public Works states: “The building is in a very unfinished condition;
many of the rooms are not floored, ceiled or plastered and the verandah with
balcony has not been erected.”



Although £7 000 had been paid for the building, it was only valued at
£3700 by the Public Works Department. Authority for completion of the
building was issued and the Public Works Department started work in Mareh,
1899. Bul the difficulties of transporting materials to Salisbury hampered the
progress of the work, so that it dragged on until March, 1900, although some
of the rooms were in use by the middle of 1899, including the Chamber. The
files of the Public Works Department of this period are filled with telegrams
ordering material, complaining of delays, urging shipping and forwarding
agents to expedite deliveries, asking for tenders for timber, glass, paints, puity
and corrugated iron. Contractors skimped their work; the Municipality, when
called upon to place a granite kerb along the pavement beside the building,
pleaded poverty as their excuse for not doing so. Nevertheless, in spite of all
the difficulties of floods, fever and rinderpest, the work was at last completed
at a cost of £8 000. The finished building was to retain its external appearance
until the alterations carried out in 1938 were put in hand.

The first meeting of the Legislative Council was held on May 15, 1899, in
what had been the dining room of the old hotel but was now to be the Debating
Chamber of the Council. The Chamber was handsomely furnished with a
“Chair™ for the Prasiding Officer, i.e. the Administrator, and tables and chairs
for the Members. All the furniture in the Debating Chamber was made of oak
and upholstered in dark green leather. The same “Chair” is today still in use
and is used by the Speaker of the House of Assembly. The other furniture from
the original Council Chamber, having been suitably refurbished, is now in use
in the Senate Chamber. A letter from Mr. A. H. Holland, then Clerk of the
Administrator’s Office, describes how the office space in the building was
utilized:

“8ir William took the room in front on the Club side. T had the room
next to him and also the small room with the strong room. The Resident
Commissioner had the back room; Robertson, the Clerk of the Council,
had the front room overlooking Cecil Square; the Treasury had the rooms
on the balcony facing the Club and the Surveyor General was in the rooms
on the other bakcony with the Attorney General with the rooms just on
top of the stairs”,

The year 1924 saw the opening of the First Session of the First Parliament
under Responsible Government. This ceremony took place in the Prince’s Hall
as it was considered that the Chamber in the Cecil Building was too small for
this great occasion. The Bulawaye Chromicle of 31st May felt that the hall
would be admirable as a parliament building until a suitable structure could be
built and indeed, during the First Session, serious consideration was given to

possible alternatives which could well have heralded the end of the Cecil
Building's association with the Legislature of Rhodesia, It was eventually
decided that improvements should be made to the Cecil Building which,
however, were to prove quite inadequate over the years. At this time, the
Legislative Assembly shared the building with the Audit and Treasury Depart-
ments which were housed on the top floor. Working conditions in the Audit
Department were 50 poor due to insufficient light from the windows that electrci
lighting had to be used throughout the day. The Governor and a private
secretary used the two front rooms on the ground floor, the remainder being
being given over to the Legislative Assembly,

By 1931, office conditions had become cramped. There was only one
Committes Room with sometimes two or three commitiess wishing o il on
the same day; the Hansard reporters used a passage way as an office, the four
Officers of the Legislative Assembly worked in the main records room and the
library was described as being “more or less a corridor™, In this year, the Audit
and Treasury Departments moved out of the building but the Department of
Education at some later date moved into the offices above the debating chamber.
However, in 1934, the Department of Education vacated two rooms for the use
of the Legislative Assembly which must have eased the situation to a certain
extent. In 1935, during & debate on the adequacy of the Cecil Building, a
member remarked that “The electrician who saved it from fire last year should
be fired himself”. However, the early 1930°s was a period when much considera-
tion was given to improvements and it was between 1937 and 1938 that major
alterations were made. The Chamber was enlarged and the ceiling raised to its
present height. A central staircase was built to obviate the necessity and in-
convenience of using the old external staircases. The wooden balonies were
replaced by a concrete structure and the present-day facade was added.

After the Second World War, further major additions wers made. A
double-storey wing with a small courtyard was built on to the MNorth side
adjoining Third Street. The courtyard itself was roofed over in 1962 and added
on to the library accommodation. [t now houses one of the stack rooms of the
library. A double storied West Wing was also added and with the subsequent
additions made to it in the early 1960's, now comprises the Ministerial suites,
the Members' dining room, the visitors bar and the kitchens,

With the introduction of the Federation, premises had to be found for the
Federal Assembly. Before it was finally decided that Salisbury was to be the
Federal capital, it was arranged that the Federal Assembly should temporarily
use the offices and Chamber of the Southern Rhodesian Legislative Assembly,
Accordingly, the first meetings of the Federal Assembly were held in the
Chamber of the Cecil Building. When it had been decided that Salisbury was





















Some Items of Interest

ithin its walls, old and new, the Parliament of Rhodesia has many features

linking it not only to the comparatively brief span of Rhodesian history

but also, through ties of custom and tradition, to the centuries of development

of parliamentary government in Great Britain, Foremost amongst these,
perhaps, in its significance and its historic associations, is the Mace,

The Mace and Despatch Boxes

The Mace is the symbol of the authority of the House, and, through the
House, of the Speaker. Without the Mace, the House can do nothing but
adjourn. Descended from the heavy spiked or serraled club-like weapon used
in medigeval times, the earliest ceremonial maces were borne by the Serjeants-
at-Arms, a royal bodyguard established in France by Philip 11 and later in
England by Richard I, Coeur-de-Lion, During the 13th century ceremonial
maces began to be ornamented with precious metals and jewels.

The use of the mace in Parliament probably dates from before the scparation
of the Houses of Lords and Commons, in the 14th century. It is generally
accepied that when the King first appointed one of his Serjeants-at-Arms to
attend upon the Speaker, a Mace went with him as the symbol of the authority
vested in the Speaker. The Mace which is still in use in the House of Commons
at Westminster is that made by Thomas Maundy in 1649: the head, incorporating
the Royal crown and the cypher of Charles I, was added after the Restoration.
The previous Mace had been destroyed or otherwise disposed of with other
royal regalias by Oliver Cromwell. The Maces of the various Parliaments of
the Commonwealth are almost all copies, with minor variations, of the House
aof Commons Mace.,

The acquisition of a Mace for the Rhodesian Parliament was suggested
by the Colonial Secretary, Sir Francis Newton, shortly after the start of the
first session of the first House of Assembly, in June 1924, He considered *that
we should endeavour to maintain the dignity of the powers and privileges of the
House by the exhibition of such a symbol . . .. Sir Ernest Montagu was
cautious: he wondered whether this would mean the appointment of & new
member to the staff to act as a Mace-bearer. Southern Rhodesia was a young
colony, and did not want to be too extravagant. More vigorous opposition
came from R. A. Fletcher, who did not see any nesd 1o go in “for this Mace
business™. It was, he felt, really a relic of barbarism: if they wanted a symbaol
of that sort, instead of spending money on a Mace they might get a knobkerrie

which could be carried into the House—an interesting comment, in the light of
the decisions taken some thirty years later by the Parliaments of ‘Ceylon and
Fiji to model their Maces on traditional war clubs. However, Sir Francis Newton
allayed fears of additional expenditure—the duties of “Mace-bearer” might,
he thought, be usefully performed by the existing staff—and the Mace which is
still used, modelled on that of the House of Commons, was supplied by Garrard
and Company of London in 1925, It is described as follows: “A chased silver-
gilt Mace, the head surmounted by a Royal Crown, enclosing date 1924, and
divided by caryatides supporting arches into four panels containing one the
Rayal Arms, onc the Arms of Southern Rhodesia, and the remaining two the
cyphers of G.R.V.; the end of the stafl terminated by four female figures, and
the rod divided by two bulb-fluted knops, and wreathed with the Mational
Emblems of the Rose, Thistle and Acorn; having a terminal trumpet-shaped
knop enriched with chased acanthus leaves, and Roses and Thistles in the
panciling”. Tis over-all length is 1,22 metres and its mass approximately
4,36 ke

The sculptured brackets on which the Mace rests on the Table of the
House are made of Rhodesian copper, supplied in 1963 by the Messina (Rho-
desia) Development Company, Limited, from its Mangula mine and featuring
the Zimbabwe bird and the Aame lily motif.

The Senate Mace, presented to the Senate by the House of Assembly in
1970, was designed and made in Salisbury. Constructed of Rhodesian silver
and pold, it is embellished with Sandawana emeralds presented to Parliament
for the purpose, and features the Rhodesian coat of arms, the Zimbabwe bird
and chevron pattern, the flame lily and the lion and thistle from Rhodes” coat
of arms. Its length is 1,27 metres, its mass 3.4 kg,

The Mace plays an important part in the day-to-day ceremonial of both
Houses. Borne by the Serjeant-at-Arms, it precedes the Speaker and, in the
case of the Senate, the President of the Senate, in their daily processions to and
from the respective Chambers. While the Speaker or the President is in the
Chair the Mace rests on the brackets on top of the Table of the House. When
the Speaker or the President leaves the Chair and the House goes into Com-
mittee, the Magce is transferred to the lower brackets beneath the Table.















Many items of inferest will be found in those paris of the House to which
the public may have access. In the main Baker Avenue entrance lobby are
portrais of Cecil John Bhodes by Svdney P, Eendrick and of the President of
Rhodesia, the Honourable Clifford Dupont, LD, by Veronica Burleigh, A
bas-reliel memorial tablet to Sir William Milton, designed and executed by
F. M. Taubman, and “donated by men who honoured and esteemed bim",
also hangs here. A small shield set into the wall is composed of fragments of
stained plass from the Palace of Westminster, recovered after the destruction
of the House of Commons Chamber by bombing in May 1941, The elephant
tusks which form lamp standards at the foot of the main starrcase were presented
to Parliament by the Ministry of Agriculture and mounted in their present
positionsin 1936, There massis 33,38 and 33,11 kg respectively. Ina niche on the
landing halfway up these stairs is a bust of Cecil John Rhodes, mounted on a
marble column. At the side of the landing 15 a photograph of the Opening of
Parliament by His Majesty King George ¥1, which took place during the Royal
Tour of Rhodesia in 1947,

In the Members' Lounge to the rght of the main entrance lobby are port-
raits of the Administrators of Bhodesia, presented to Parliament by the British
South Africa Company in 1939 to commemorate the fifticth anniversary of the
granting of the Company’s Royal Charter, and of the country's Governors.
Artistically, possibly the most valuable items in this room, however, are the
miniatures of Cecil John Bhodes and Alfred Beit painted by the American artist
Amalia Kussner Coudert in 1901, The miniatures were discovered in an antigue
shop in London during the Second World War, and were presented (o the South
African Government, which in turn presented them to the Government of
Southern Rhodesia,

In the gallery on the First Floor above the main entrance lobby are portraits
of the country's Prime Ministers and also of the Speakers of the House of
Assembly, A bust of the present Prime Minister, the Honourable lan D Smith,
LD, by Mrs. Inge Haxen, will alse be found here. A porirait of the President
of the Senate, the Honourable J. W, Pithey, LC.[., C.B.E., by Alison Bashall,
hangs outside the Senate Chamber, On the other side of the enirance (o the
Senate hangs a large portrait of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth 11: a copy of the
State portrait by James Gunn, On the First Floor above the entrance 1o the
Senate Chamber is a large painting of Victoria Falls from the castern side, by
E. H. Holder.

In the Members’ Dining Room are two items of considerable value and
interest. The painting of the Victoria Falls by Thomas Baines, the artist and
explorer, was presented to Parliament by Mr. Hugh I3, Lermiitte, of Muthaiga,
Kenya. It bears on the back the following inseription: “The Mosi O A Tunya,
*Smoke Sounding', or the Victoria Falls of the Zambesi River, South Africa,
Latitude observed 17.554 South, Longitude approximately 25-35 East.
T. Baines, London, 1867, From sketches taken on the spot during the journey of
J. Chapman and T. Baines, [E60."" This 15 believed to be the largest canvas
painted by Baines,

The Mational Tapesiry, which also hangs in the Members' Dining Foom,
developed from a suggestion made in 1946 by Lady Tait, wife of the then
Governor of Southern Rhodesia, that the Women's Institutes collaborate in
the creation of a tapestry depicting notable events in Rhodesian history, on
similar lines to the Bayeus Tapestry. A Meesdlework Committes was set up in
1948, and in 1963 the completed fapestry was presented to the nation “as a
memorial to the country’s plonser women”, and hung in Parliament, The 42
panels, which are embroidery on linen, run to a total length of 30 metres,
and show scenes ranging from prehistoric times, through the martyrdom of
Father Gonealo da Silveira in the sixteenth century to the establishment of the
Federation of Rhodesia and Myasaland. They incorporafe some five million
stitches, representing many hours of exacting work and arfistic endeavour by
the women of Rhodesia. A full description of the tapestry, with colour repro-
ductions of the panels, has been published and is enfifled “Rhodesian fapestry:
a history in needlework, embroidered by Women's Institutes of Ehodesia®,

In the Members® Bar, adjoining the Dining Room, is a chalk and charcoal
drawing of the “Boiling Pot™, Victoria Falls, by R. Gwelo Goodman, There is
also a collection of caricatures of former Members by the South African
cartoonist Leyden.

Apart from the items of sculpture which have already been mentioned, a
link with Westminster stands facing the Third Street entrance to the Strangers’
Gallery: this is a crowned lion holding a shield, which ai one time formed part
of the decorative stonework of the British Houses of Parliament. Damaged by
bombing in 1941, it was one of @ number of relics presented to Commonwealth
Parliaments as symbols of their common parliamentary tradition after the
reconstruction of the Palace of Westminster,

The Members’ i g - ouieimi, H:nu.
Assembly, showing the painting of i
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In the cornidor leading from this entrance to the House of Assembly
Chamber are bronze busts of Lord Malvern, Prime Minister of Southern Rho-
desia from 1933 to 1953 and of the Federation from 1953 to 1956; of Feld
Marshal Jan C. Smuts, Prime Minister of South Africa from 1919 (o0 1924, and
fromm 1939 1o 1948, by Jacob Epstein®; of Sir Leander Starr Jameson, Adminis-
trator of Mashonaland 1891-1896, Administrator of Matabeleland 1894
1896 and Prime Minister of the Cape Colony, 1904-1908, by Manon Walgate;
of Cecil John Rhodes, also by Marion Walgate; of H. F. Verwoerd, South
Alrican Prime Minister, 1955-19%66; and of Frederick Courteney Selous, 1851-
1917, hunter, explorer and author, who was guide to the Pioneer Column in
1890 and later worked For the British South Africa Company.

The Rhodesian coats of arms which hang above the Speaker’s Chair in
the House of Assembly and above the Presidents Chair in the Senate were
carved from solid mukwa by an African sculptor, Job Kekana.

Another object of interest is a Tower Musket which was discovered under
the Aoor of the Assembly Chamber during the repair of termite damage some
years ago, It is a Whitworth muzzle-loading rifle and it was manufactured,
probably as a trade musket, in 1873,

* This 15 a copy of the head of the full-length statue of General Smuls by
Epstein which stands in Parliament Square, Westminster, London.
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